Summons to Meeting
Tuesday 16 June 2020

Executive
Wednesday 24 June 2020, 4.00 pm
Zoom Virtual Meeting
Membership:
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)
Councillor John Cook
Councillor Jim Lister
Councillor Alan Pitcher

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald
Councillor Anthony Markley

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™
Channel.
If you have any questions or queries contact Gayle Roach on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2020.

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declaration of Interests
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4.

Questions
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5.

Members' Announcements

6.

Budget 2020-21 - Financial Impact of Covid-19 (Pages 7 - 22)

7.

Council Strategy Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 (Pages 23 - 44)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:
Wednesday 15 July 2020, 4.00 pm
Zoom Virtual Meeting

Agenda Item 1
At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
on Wednesday 18 March 2020 at 4.00 pm
Members
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)
Councillor John Cook
Councillor Jim Lister

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald
Councillor Anthony Markley

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alan Pitcher
Staff Present
A Gilbert, C Holmes, L Jardine, K Kerrigan and S Sewell

388.

Minutes
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 February 2020 were signed as
a correct record.

389.

Declaration of Interests
None declared.

390.

Questions
None received.

391.

Members' Announcements
None received.

392.

Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy
The subject of the decision
The Head of Programmes and Projects submitted a report which sought
member’s approval of the revised Strategic Commissioning and Procurement
Strategy 2020-30.
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald.
The motion was unanimously agreed.
Alternative options considered
Not to approve the revised Strategy.
The reason for the decision

Page 3

A revised Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy 2020-30 reflects
changes in best practice and ensures that the Council pursues sustainable
outcomes, value for money and continuous improvement in its commissioning
and procurement of goods, services and works.
The decision
Resolved
That the revised Strategic Commissioning and Procurement Strategy 20202030 be adopted.
393.

Local Plan (part 2)
The subject of the decision
The Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance submitted a report which sought
member’s approval of the modified Allerdale Local Plan (part 2).
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendations as per the report; this was
seconded by Councillor J Lister. The motion was unanimously agreed.
Alternative options considered
Not to adopt the Local Plan (part 2).
The reason for the decision
The Local Plan (part 2) was submitted in January 2019 to the Minister for
Housing, Communities and Local Government for independent examination.
The Council received the Inspectors report and it was for members to consider
approval in line with his recommendations.
The decision
Recommended – That Council be requested to agree that –
1. The modified Local Plan (part 2), as set out in appendix 2 of the report,
be adopted as part of the statutory development plan for the area of the
Borough outside the Lake District National Park
2. The Policies Maps, including modifications as set out in appendix 3 of the
report, be adopted.

394.

Creation of an Executive Shareholder Committee
The subject of the decision
The Head of Governance and Regulatory Services submitted a report which
sought member’s approval of the creation of an Executive Shareholder
Committee.

Page 4

Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was
seconded by Councillor J Cook.
The motion was unanimously agreed.
Alternative options considered
To make decisions through the Executive instead of an Executive Shareholder
Committee.
The reason for the decision
To promote good governance and to demonstrate there was a clear separation
between the Council’s role as the Municipal Authority and the Council’s role as
shareholder; officers recommended the creation of an Executive Shareholder
Committee. This new Committee of the Executive would fulfil the Council’s role
as sole shareholder in current and future Local Authority Trading Companies
(“Companies”).
The decision
Resolved
That –
1. The draft Shareholder Agreement between Allerdale Borough Council
and Allerdale Waste Services Limited (AWSL) as set out in Appendix 1
and the draft Shareholder Agreement between Allerdale Borough Council
and Allerdale Housing & Development Limited (AHDL) as set out at
appendix 4 be approved
2. In accordance with Executive Procedure Rule 5.7, the creation of a
committee of the Executive, (Executive Shareholder Committee) and,
subject to paragraph (2) below, the terms of reference as shown in
Appendix 2 to this report be approved
3. Councillors M Fitzgerald, M Johnson and T Markley be appointed to the
Executive Shareholder Committee
4. The Monitoring Officer be authorised, in consultation with the Leader, to
take all necessary action to finalise the terms of reference to be included
in the Council’s Constitution and to make such other consequential
amendments to the Constitution as the Monitoring Officer deems
appropriate.
The meeting closed at 4.20 pm

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 6
Allerdale Borough Council
Executive – 24 June 2020
Budget 2020-21 – Financial Impact of Covid-19

The Reason for the Decision

To update the Budget position to inform
of the financial impact of Covid-19 on the
authority

Summary of options considered

This report presents proposals to the
potential budget pressures arising from
the Covid-19 Pandemic. This is to
ensure that the Council meets its
statutory duty to maintain a balanced
budget position.
The budget position will be monitored
monthly to ensure that the ongoing
impacts of the pandemic can be
identified, and corrective action taken
where necessary.

Recommendations

1) That the report be noted
2) Delegate to the S151 Officer in
consultation with the portfolio
holder for Finance and Legal, the
increasing of the expenditure
budget for the Business Grants –
Discretionary Scheme for small
businesses by the amount of grant
allocated of £1,995,000
3) Delegate to the S151 Officer in
consultation with the Monitoring
Officer and Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Legal the variation of
income payment terms and any
associated contractual variations
4) Agrees that reserves are
protected by not allowing carry
forwards of underspend into this
financial year except in
exceptional circumstances
5) That Members review the position
on a monthly basis and give

Page 7

delegated authority for the S151 to
release additional sums from
General Fund balances to address
the budget position

Financial / Resource Implications

As set out in the report.

Legal / Governance Implications

S 114 of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988 requires the S151 Officer, in
consultation with the Council’s Monitoring
Officer, to report to all the authority’s
Members if there is, or is likely to be, an
unbalanced budget.

Community Safety Implications

None directly

Health and Safety and Risk
Management Implications

The budget contains provision for the
Council to discharge its obligations under
health and safety legislation, and to
maintain a reserve in order to manage
risks.
There are also risks that the Council will
not be able to operate within agreed
budgetary provisions, but this can be
minimised by the financial monitoring
process and by the prudent policy on the
level of reserves and balances.

Equality Duty considered / Impact
Assessment completed

As part of the budget growth bids and
savings bids process.

Wards Affected

All

The contribution this decision would
make to the Council’s priorities

The revenue budget is set to support the
Council in achieving priorities through the
Council Plan and to facilitate control of
expenditure on its activities.

Is this a Key Decision

Yes

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Jim Lister
Portfolio Holder for Finance and Legal

Page 8

Lead Officer

Catherine Nicholson, Head of Financial
Services
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 702503

Report Implications
Community Safety

Y

Financial

Y

Legal

Y

Partnership

Y

Social Inclusion

Y

Asset Management

N

Equality Duty

Y

Health and Safety

Y

Employment (internal)

N

Employment

N

(external to the Council)

Background Papers: Revenue and Capital approved budget 2020-21, MHCLG
financial returns and working papers, Government COVID-19 guidance and
notifications

1.0

Introduction

1.1

Since the Council approved its Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2020-21 the
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the Council’s
finances. These impacts started to be felt before the introduction of the
lockdown started on the 23rd March 2020 and will continue as the lockdown
starts to ease and our local economy opens again.

1.2

This report will look at the latest forecast financial position for 2020-21 and
identify the emerging pressures on our ability to deliver on the approved
budgets.

1.3

It will also look at the range of financial support that is available from Central
Government to assist us and our communities during the period of the
pandemic.

1.4

The report will also assess how this crisis will affect the financial resilience of
this authority and how the aftermath will affect the assumptions made in our
Medium-Term Financial Strategy.

Page 9

2.0

Estimated Impact on Revenue Budget 2020-21 due to COVID-19

2.1

The summary table below sets out the budget as approved by Council for
2020-21 with the estimated impacts of Covid19 against this to show an
updated budget position for this financial year. The Covid19 impact is
estimated for the full year based on the experience of additional spend and
lost income between March and May 2020.

Table 1: 2020-21 Revenue Budget

Base Budget
Change in salary costs - recurring
Recurring growth per 2020/21 original budget
Recurring savings per 2020/21 original budget
Recurring growth - COVID
Recurring savings - COVID
Recurring (base) budget
Change in salary costs – non-recurring
Non-recurring growth
Non-recurring savings
Non-recurring growth - COVID
Non-recurring savings - COVID
Net Expenditure
Expenditure on earmarked priorities
Proposed Budget (excluding parish precepts)
Parish precepts
Proposed Budget (including parish precepts)
Less: Planned use of earmarked balances
Net Budget Requirement

2.2

2020-21

COVID
Impact

2020-21
Update

£000

£000

£000

11,449
146
1,041
(396)
0
0
12,240
0
756
(194)
0
0
12,802
190
12,992
2,458
15,450
(190)
15,260

0
0
0
46
0
0
46
0
0
6,665
(2,992)
3,720
0
3,720
0
3,720
0
3,720

11,449
146
1,041
(350)
0
0
12,286
0
756
(194)
6,665
(2,992)
16,522
190
16,712
2,458
19,170
(190)
18,980

This indicates a potential increase in the Net Budget Requirement of £3.72
million should the impact experienced to date be continued for the full
financial year.

Page 10

2.3

The Table below shows how this amended budget position would be funded:

Table 2: 2020-21 Revenue Funding
COVID
Impact

2020-21

Revenue support grant
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Other government grants (New Homes Bonus)
Other government grants (Levy Surplus)
Other grants
Council tax – excluding parish element
Council tax – parish element
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax
NNDR funding - inc s31 grants
Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - NNDR
Less Transfer of s31 Grant to Earmarked Reserves
Use of /(contribution to) General Fund Balances
Total funding

£000
199
326
606
0
0
5,400

£000

2020-21
Update

0
0
0
0
968
0

£000
199
326
606
0
968
5,400

2,458
21
6,112
138

0
0
5,541
0

2,458
21
11,653
138

0

(5,541)

(5,541)

0
15,260

2,752
3,720

2,752
18,980

2.4

In order to maintain a balanced budget there would be a requirement to
release £2.752 million from General Fund balances. This would drop the level
of reserves available to £596,000 which is significantly below the agreed
minimum retained balance of £2.7 million and is therefore not sustainable.
(see section 8).

3.0

Additional Expenditure due to Covid-19

3.1

The table below summarises the additional spend the authority anticipates it
will have to incur because of the pandemic.

Page 11

Table 3: 2020-21 Additional Expenditure

Activity / service Area

Description

Revenue & benefits
overtime costs
IT costs
Zoom licences
Homelessness - additional cost
Waste collection

Actual Actual
April
May
£
£
2,353
1,288
1,000
0
12,959 22,920
72,000 72,000

June to
March
£
0
0
25,918
144,000

Estimated
full year
impact
£
3,641
1,000
61,797
288,000

88,312 96,208

169,918

354,438

3.2

There has not been significant areas of increased spend yet due to Covid-19.
Whilst the authority has had staff who have had to shield and self-isolate
during the lockdown period, the impact of this has been minor. Spikes in
demand in certain areas have been managed by flexible working and
redeployment between teams. Some additional costs have been incurred for
staffing and IT, but again this are not material.

3.3

One of our earliest additional spend areas has been the ongoing requirement
to house homeless and rough sleepers in Allerdale from the start of the
lockdown. The average number of homeless presentations accommodated
before the pandemic was around 7 but following the lockdown restrictions
there has been a three-fold increase in the number of people presenting
requiring accommodation.

3.4

Another early concern for us was around the need to keep out Waste
Services operating, and bins collected and emptied. Concerns were raised
about the need to review the working arrangements to comply with the
increased cleaning regimes and social distancing requirement. Should the
crews be impacted by staff sickness or the need to go to Driver only in the
vehicles, contingency plans have been made.

3.5

The Covid-19 crisis has disrupted our transformation and efficiency
programmes and there are several planning savings built into the budget that
can no longer be delivered in the original timescales. Managers are currently
reviewing their service areas and drawing up recovery plans to address future
working in the recovery period. As part of this review they are also identifying
areas where further transformation activity can be programmed. The
organisation has worked swiftly and adapted well to the challenges presented
over the last few months and it is important that we can learn lessons from
this crisis for our future operating model.

4.0

Lost or Reduced Income due to COVID-19 situation
Sales, Fees and Charges

Page 12

4.1

The current approved budget for 2020-21 includes approximately £10 million
of income from sales, fees and charges. Several of these income streams
have been turned off or significantly impacted due to the lockdown measures
that have been in place.

4.2

The majority of this income is taken directly to the revenue budget and so any
reduction will be an immediate pressure on the budget. Ultimately if no
compensating action is taken then this will put pressure on reserves.

4.3

The table below summaries the estimated lost or reduced income:

Table 4: 2020-21 Lost or Reduced Income
Activity /service Area

Car Parks
Camping & Caravan Site
Workington Town Centre
Trade Waste
Recycling
Domestic Waste
Planning and Development
Building Control - Chargeable
Bereavement Services
Industrial Units
Tenanted Properties
Land Charges Service
Markets
Assistance - Housing Services
Festivals & Events

Actual
April

Actual
May

June to
March

£
342,629
33,333
0
57,413
27,317
1,960
46,313
24,238
5,000
20,000
12,000
11,345
8,338
2,185
1,000

£
1,362,224
333,334
142,900
117,922
0
5,545
48,543
9,627
4,000
40,000
28,000
22,690
41,234
18,972
4,000

£
1,950,563
400,000
212,900
226,600
95,027
10,036
94,856
46,779
16,000
74,000
55,250
44,535
57,910
29,657
5,000

547,051 593,071

2,178,991

3,319,113

245,710
33,333
70,000
51,265
67,710
2,531
0
12,914
7,000
14,000
15,250
10,500
8,338
8,500
0

Estimated full
year impact

4.4

The largest impact is on our carparks, which following government guidance
were only open for key workers and essential trips and were made free. In
Keswick two of the carparks were closed to assist with requirements to “Stay
and Home and Protect the NHS”.

4.5

The Loss of income for the Camping & Caravan site is estimated at £33,333
per month which equates to a forecast loss of £400,000 for a full year.
Camping sites were instructed to close by the Government in March and are
still awaiting confirmation of when they can re-open.

Page 13

4.6

Workington Town Centre rental income is paid quarterly and due to store
closures, no rental income was received in April. The current forecast is that
no additional rental income will be received for the remainder of the current
financial year.

4.7

Due to the significant number of businesses that were required to close as
part of the lock down rules, there has been a temporary suspension of Trade
Waste collections and hence a corresponding drop in income. Recycling has
also reduced during the period.

4.8

Where invoices are raised there may be delays in payment terms. Debtors
are encouraged to call the Council as soon as possible if they are
experiencing difficulties with making payments. To date, only a handful of
requests, mainly from tenants in commercial properties, to spread payments
over the latter part of the financial year. It is recommended that the
negotiation on changes to payment terms and contractual terms is delegated
to the S151 and Monitoring Officer in consultation with the relevant Portfolio
Holder.

4.9

It is worth noting that this is still early in the financial year and there is a real
potential that payments due from May and June onwards will be a more
significant test of the impact.

Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)
5.0

Council Tax

5.1

The amount of council tax income available to the Council’s general fund is
fixed at the level determined when the council tax is set. Based on the 202021 tax base of 30,905.23 the amount of Council Tax income receivable for this
financial year is £5,399,762.

5.2

This amount is paid out of the Council’s Collection Fund regardless of how
much council tax is collected during the year.

5.3

If more council tax is collected than expected there will be a surplus on the
Collection Fund. If less is collected than expected, then there will be a deficit
on the Collection Fund. Any surplus or deficit must be considered in the next
year’s budget – ie 2021-22 financial year.

5.4

Council Tax collection rates are already 0.50% lower than expected in April
(approximately £60k). The impacts of Covid19 are likely to see further
reductions in the recovery rates as a result of payment failure and default.

5.5

There are also likely to be significant increases in the number of local council
tax support claimants as this financial year progresses.

Page 14

5.6

Both of these have the potential to increase the deficit or lower the surplus in
this financial year which will then have to be considered when setting the
budget next year.

5.7

They will also have the potential to lower the taxable capacity (tax base) of the
borough thereby limiting the amount of income that can be raised through
Council Tax.

5.8

A broader further implication is that the potential economic consequences on
the house building sector may result in lower levels of growth in the council
tax base in the future.

6.0

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)

6.1

Under the business rates retention scheme, 40% of business rates (NNDR)
collected is retained by the Council. The remainder is paid to Central
Government (50%) and Cumbria County Council (10%). The scheme also
provides that certain sums are to be treated as being outside the scheme and
retained in their entirety by the Council (or by the Council and the County
Council).The Council is also able to retain the growth in the local share of
business rates, subject to the payment of a levy to central government,
designed to prevent disproportionate increases in the Council’s funding as a
result of growth in business rates income.

6.2

The amount of business rates income available to the Council’s general fund
and taken into account when setting the budget, is based on an estimate
made in January preceding the start of the financial year and included in the
government return NNDR 1 (i.e. January 2020 for the 2020-21 Financial
Year).

6.3

The estimate of business rates income considers any projected changes in
the tax base, estimated losses due to appeals and expected collection rates.
The amounts paid to the County Council and central government and the
amount retained by the Council are fixed at the outset of each year (based on
the estimates included in the Council’s NNDR 1 return). Consequently, any
difference between estimated amounts and the actual amounts receivable will
result in a surplus, or deficit on the Council’s Collection Fund.

6.4

The NNDR1 form fixes a significant portion of NNDR income available to the
Council’s general fund for the financial year, it does not fix the:
• levy the Council pays to the Cumbria business rates pool
• retained levy that the Council receives back from the pool or
• grant it receives from central government to compensate for certain business
rate reliefs (section 31 grant)
• the balance of amount payable or receivable in respect of the preceding
years disregarded income (renewable energy reconciliation adjustment).

Page 15

6.5

Amounts relating to levy payments and section 31 grant are based on the
Collection Fund outturn position rather than on the estimates included in the
NNDR 1 return. As a member of the Cumbria wide business rates pool, the
net levy payable also considers the Collection Fund outturn positions of other
pool members. Therefore, the amount of income the Council receives and
pays in relation to these items is subject to change over the course of the
financial year. The renewable energy reconciliation adjustment is based on
the previous year’s outturn position.

6.6

In 2020/21 the main elements of the NNDR income at risk of change are the
level of section 31 grants and the Levy payable (net of reduction under pool
arrangements). The former includes the increase in s31 grants receivable
during the year as result of the additional and extended reliefs introduced to
COVID -19 (including the increased and expanded retail scheme) of £5.541m.
The amount of s31 grant will also be impacted by other changes, compared to
NNDR 1 estimates, in the actual amount of reliefs awarded and for which the
Authority receives compensation in the form of a s31 grant.

6.7

The additional s31 grant awarded to the Authority in 2020/21 to cover the cost
of the extended and additional reliefs introduced in response to COVID -19
must be accounted for in the year (2020/21). However, because the demands
on the collection fund in respect of business rates are fixed prior to the start of
the financial year, the cost of those additional reliefs in the Collection Fund
(i.e. the Authority's share of the collection fund deficit generated by the
additional reliefs) will not be borne by the general fund until 2021-22. To
offset the significant fall in business rates income in 2021-22 it is therefore
recommended that the additional s31 grant received this year is transferred to
an earmarked reserve to be released in 2021-22.

6.8

In addition to the impact of the additional reliefs awarded other potential, but
unquantified, consequences of the pandemic include





Changes to the growth in business rates as a result of lower economic
growth
losses arising from non-payment
losses arising from empty properties
changes in the value of reliefs not compensated for through S31 grants

7.0

Financial Support available to Allerdale BC from Central Government

7.1

The additional financial support from central government can be broken down
into three areas of support:




7.2

additional funding to support Allerdale BC
Cash flow
Grant funding to support businesses

Table 5 below sets out a summary of the additional funding to support
Allerdale:

Page 16

Table 5: Additional Funding
Measure
Covid -19 emergency funding
Covid -19 emergency funding tranche 2
Council Tax Hardship Fund

Relates to
which
year
£
64,382
2019/20

Amount

Additional
or to offset

Date
received

Additional

27/03/2020

967,863

2020/21

Additional

11/05/2020

910,462

2020/21

Additional

03/04/2020

6,001

2019/20

Additional

Homelessness Funding
Reopening High Streets Safely
Fund
Local Authority Discretionary
Grant Fund (LADGF)
Extended and Additional
Business Rates Reliefs (billing
authorities only)

86,416

2020/21

Additional

1,995,000

2020/21

Additional

01/04/2020

5,541,000

2020/21

Offset

Instalments
commenced
May 2020

Total

9,571,124

7.3

Covid19 Emergency Funding - The first tranche of funding announced on 19
March was primarily to meet the increased demand for and enable additional
support across adult social care; meet the additional costs of providing
children’s social care; provide additional support for the homeless and rough
sleepers; support those at higher risk of severe illness from COVID-19; and
meet pressures across other services.

7.4

The second tranche of funding, announced just over 4 weeks after the first
announcement, is aimed at getting rough sleepers off the streets, supporting
clinically vulnerable people and providing assistance for the public health
workforce. It is also to reflect financial pressure being felt by councils resulting
from lower use of fee-paying services (e.g. car parks and leisure facilities).

7.5

Council Tax Hardship Fund –As part of its response to COVID-19, the
Government announced in the Budget on 11 March that it would provide local
authorities in England with £500m of new grant funding to support
economically vulnerable people and households in their local area. Allerdale
Borough Council has been allocated £910,462.
The Government expects that billing authorities will primarily use their grant
allocation to reduce the council tax liability of individuals in their area, using
their discretionary powers under s13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992.
Allerdale Borough Council will provide all recipients of working age local
council tax support(‘LCTS’) during the financial year 2020-21 with a further
reduction in their annual council tax bill of up to £300, using our discretionary
powers to reduce the liability of council tax payers outside of our formal LCTS
scheme design.

Page 17

Allerdale Borough Council do not require any recipient of LCTS to make a
separate claim for the reduction under this part of the scheme. We will identify
who is eligible for support from the hardship fund and automatically rebill
those council taxpayers.
Additionally, some of the funding will be allocated to deliver increased
financial assistance through other local support mechanisms, such as the
Community Resilience and Welfare groups.
7.6

Homelessness Fund - To meet the cost of providing accommodation and
services to rough sleepers, and those at risk of rough sleeping, who are
suffering from or at risk of coronavirus.

7.7

Re-opening High Streets Safely Fund -To prepare for the reopening of nonessential retail. This funding is intended to support a range of practical safety
measures including new signs, street markings and temporary barriers. Local
authorities will also be able to use this money to develop local marketing
campaigns to explain the changes to the public and reassure them that their
high streets and other commercial areas are safe.

7.8

Extended and Additional Business Rates Relief - Additional section 31 grant
to compensate the Authority for the loss on business rates income arising
from expansion of the retail discount scheme (relief increased to 100% and
scheme extended to cover occupied retail, leisure and hospitality properties in
the year 2020-21, nursery discount and reinstatement and extension of pub
relief . Total additional cost of the expanded retail scheme and bursary
scheme is estimated at £13,557,177. The cost of the extended pub relief is
£285k. The Authority's share of these additional and extended reliefs - funded
by s31 grant is estimated (40%) to be £5,541k.

7.9

Table 6 below sets out the support to assist the cash flow position:

Table 6: Cash flow
Measure

Amount

Relates
to
which
year

Additional
or to offset

Date
received

£
2020/21 BR s31 advance

2,298,326.00

2020/21

Cash flow
measure only

27/03/2020

Deferment of central share of
Business rates

3,769,155.00

2020/21

Cash flow
measure only

3 month
deferral

6,067,481.00

7.10

Business Rate S31 advance - Advance payment of the S31 grant amounts
calculated on NNDR 1 2020-21 Part 1C, which were due for payment during
2020-21 to ease local authority cash flows. The grant amounts have been

Page 18

paid in an upfront lump sum. These would normally be paid in instalments
over the course of the 2020-21 financial year.
7.11

Deferral of payment of central share of NNDR -The 9% due on each of 30
April, 19 May and 22 June in respect of the Central Share of business rates
will be paid at a date to be determined, later in the financial year.

7.12

Table 7 below sets out the grant funding to support Allerdale businesses:

Table 7: Funding for grants administered by the Authority
Measure
Grant Funding schemes SBGF
and RHLGF – and Discretionary
fund

Relates Additional
or to
to
Amount
offset
which
£
year
42,194,000.00 2020/21
N/A

Date
received
01/04/2020

42,194,000.00

7.13

Grant Funding Schemes - The government initially announced two grant
funding schemes. The first is for small businesses claiming small business
rate relief (SBRR) and they are eligible for a grant payment of £10k. The
second scheme is for those businesses with property in the Retail, Hospitality
and Leisure sectors. The grant is £10k for those where the rateable value is
up to (and including) £15k and if the rateable value is over £15k but less than
£51k then the grant is £25k. The allocation awarded was £42,194,000 of
which £1,995,000 was subsequently reallocated by government to support the
Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF) - see above. In
administering these grants, the Authority is acting as agent for the Department
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS). Neither the s31 grant
nor the grant paid to eligible businesses are therefore included in the
Authority's Income and expenditure account (or general fund). New burdens
funding, which will be income to the Authority has yet to be announced.

7.14

Discretionary Grant Fund – On 1st May 2020 the Government announced a
discretionary funding scheme, administered by Local Authorities, to support
businesses affected by COVID19. Allerdale has been allocated £1,995,000.
To administer the grant effectively a Local Authority Discretionary Grants
policy has been approved.
The policy outlines the Council’s intention to consider grants based on the
Government’s priorities and the additional inclusion of supply chain
businesses affected by the mandated closure of businesses due to COVID19
(tourism, hospitality and retail) and manufacturing businesses. These two

Page 19

sectors have been added having been identified within the Council’s Business
Growth strategy as key sectors and in consultation with other local authorities
and business support organisations. The policy has been developed in
consultation with other Cumbrian local authorities as per the Government
guidance.
The guidance from Government allows the Council to use discretion in terms
of the criteria. Several options were considered by the Council but after
consultation it has been determined that the initial focus should be on the
Government’s priorities and the two additional areas of supply chain
businesses to those businesses mandated to close and manufacturing.
The Council has been unable to quantify the level of eligible businesses in the
planning of this programme, however based on numbers of rateable
properties, business census and number of people declaring themselves as
self-employed the number could exceed 1,000. It is for this reason that the
Council has reserved the right to give consideration to the levels of funding
awarded in the first round of funding and the potential for future funding
rounds. The level of funding received from Government would enable the
Council to award 80 grants of £25,000. The policy therefore recommends that
the maximum grant to be considered is £10,000. This would mean the Council
was able to support a minimum of 199 businesses.

8.0

Impact on the Reserves and Balances

8.1

General Fund (GF) balances are a part of our risk management process and
are retained to protect the authority in the event of major unforeseen events
as well as provide a buffer against future financial risks in the medium term.
Holding the appropriate level of reserves enables the organisation to manage
the demands placed on us in these circumstances.

8.2

The current approved minimum level of General Fund (GF) balances has
been set at £2.7 million, based on the assessment of anticipated risks and
uncertainty around the future of local government funding. The risk
assessment did not factor in the potential of a national lock-down due to a
worldwide pandemic.

8.3

Based on the worst-case example of the impacts of the lockdown lasting for
the full financial year then as set out in section 2 above, then a further £2.752
million would be required to be released from reserves.

8.4

The opening position on GF Balances can be seen in the table below:

Page 20

Table 8: Estimated General Fund balances - per original 2020/21 budget

Opening Balance at 1 April
Add: transfer (to)/from Earmarked
Reserves
Less: Use to finance 2019-20 Capital
Programme
Less: budgeted use of GF to support
2019-20 Revenue Budget
Forecast revenue Outturn variance
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Revenue
Budget
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Capital
Budget
Less: Projected Revenue
Surplus/(Deficit) per MTFP
Projected Balance at 31 March
Less Retained - Minimum Balance
Available for use

8.6

2019-201
£000
3,890

2020-21
£000
3,357

2021-22
£000
3,348

2022-23
£000
1,376

678

0

0

0

0

0

0

(9)

0

0

0

(1,972)

(1,791)

3,348
(2,700)
648

1,376
(2,700)
(1,324)

(415)
(2,700)
(3,115)

(129)
(1,082)

3,357
(2,700)
657

Table 9 below, updates the GF balances position should £2.752 million have
to be released to cover the financial impact of Covid-19. This indicates that
by the end of 2020-21 the balance will fall to £596k which is significantly
below the minimum retained level of £2.7 million. The impact of using these
balances in 2020-21 also means that there is no cushion available to cover
the already forecast shortfall in the budget anticipated from 2021-22 onwards.

Table 9: Updated GF Balances following Covid19 impact

Opening Balance at 1 April
Add: transfer (to)/from Earmarked
Reserves
Less: Use to finance 2019-20 Capital
Programme
Less: budgeted use of GF to support
2019-20 Revenue Budget
Forecast revenue Outturn variance
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Revenue
Budget
Less: Use to fund 2020-21 Capital
Budget
Less: Projected Revenue
Surplus/(Deficit) per MTFP
Projected Balance at 31 March
Less Retained - Minimum Balance
Available for use

2019-201
£000
3,890

2020-21
£000
3,357

2021-22
£000
596

2022-23
£000
(1,376)

678

0

0

0

(2,752)

0

0

(9)

0

0

0

(1,972)

(1,791)

596
(2,700)
(2,104)

(1,376)
(2,700)
(4,076)

(3,167)
(2,700)
(5,867)

Page 21

(129)
(1,082)

3,357
(2,700)
657

9.0

Next Steps

9.1

Monthly returns are being completed to MHCLG on the estimated financial
impact that this pandemic is having on local authorities and officers will
continue to monitor the financial position on a monthly basis.

9.2

The Account and Audit regulations have now extended the deadline for the
preparation of the accounts from 31st May 2020 to 31st August 2020 and the
deadline for the audited accounts to be approved pushed back from 31 st July
2020 to 30th November 2020.

9.3

It is expected that Council’s outturn position will be reported to Executive next
month which will detail the requests for carry -forwards of budget from 201920 to 2020-21. As there is significant potential to call on GF balances this
year, which is unsustainable after this financial year, we must protect these
reserves wherever possible. For that reason, it is recommended that carry
forward of underspent budgets are only approved in exceptional
circumstances.

10.0

Conclusion

10.1

This report recognises the exceptional circumstances that this pandemic has
caused the authority and the seriousness of the financial impact it is having on
both the organisation and our residents and businesses as well as the wider
national and global impact.

10.2

The full impact on our budget will emerge as the restrictions are lifted and the
timing and scale of any further central government funding is announced. The
timing and scale of central governments support to local authorities is crucial
to our ongoing financial health.

10.3

As well as the financial implications for the Council’s budget position, there
are going to be long term implications for our local economy, and this makes
future financial planning very difficult and significantly more uncertain at this
stage.

10.4

Although we are faced with uncertainty and challenging times ahead, it is
important that we learn from the crisis and particularly from the way we have
had to adapt and find new ways of delivering our services in the future.

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services (s151 officer)

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Allerdale Borough Council
Executive – 24 June 2020
Council Strategy Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21

The Reason for the Decision

To approve the draft Interim Delivery Plan
2020/21. The Interim Delivery Plan sets out
specific activity to be undertaken over the next
year in working towards achieving the objectives
set out in the Council Strategy and is the
proposed vehicle by which the Council will report
progress against Council Strategy priorities during
2020/21.

Summary of options considered

1. Executive may wish to approve the draft
Interim Delivery Plan as presented at
Appendix A.
2. Executive may wish to approve the draft
Interim Delivery Plan subject to amendments
being made.
3. Executive may wish not to approve the draft
Interim Delivery Plan.

Recommendations

That members approve the draft Interim Delivery
Plan 2020/21 as presented at Appendix A.

Financial / Resource Implications

The budget setting process is an ongoing annual
exercise that determines the financial plans for
current and future years and is informed by the
Council’s priorities as set out in the Council
Strategy. Information on resources allocated is
contained in the Council Budget published
annually. In light of the ongoing pandemic the
budget for 2020/21 will be revised in year and the
Delivery Plan may need revising as the financial
implications of the pandemic are reassessed
throughout 2020/21. There are no additional
resource requirements requested arising directly
from this report at this time.

Legal / Governance Implications

The Council Strategy forms part of the Council’s
budget and policy framework and responsibility
for it is shared between the Executive and the
Council.

Community Safety Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Page 23

Health and Safety and Risk
Management Implications

The Interim Delivery Plan will be delivered by
service areas with relevant risks being managed
on an operational level. At a corporate level the
Executive will manage the risk of not delivering
the Plan and therefore not achieving its
objectives.

Equality Duty considered / Impact
Assessment completed

An equality impact assessment of the Council
Strategy was carried out. The equality
implications of individual projects and
programmes of work will be considered as
appropriate.

Wards Affected

All

The contribution this decision would
make to the Council’s priorities

The Interim Delivery Plan sets out specific activity
that will be undertaken over the next year to work
towards achieving the objectives set out in the
Council Strategy in the context of the ongoing
Covid-19 pandemic.

Is this a Key Decision

Yes

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Mike Johnson and Councillor Marion
Fitzgerald

Lead Officer

Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate,
Performance and Information)
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications
Community Safety

Y

Employment (external to the Council)

Y

Financial

N

Employment (internal)

Y

Legal

N

Partnership

Y

Social Inclusion

Y

Asset Management

Y

Equality Duty

N

Health and Safety

Y

Background papers …Council Strategy 2020-2030…………………………………

Page 24

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Council Strategy 2020-30 was approved by Council in December 2019.
The Council Strategy sets out priority themes and a clear set of objectives for
each theme over 10 years.

1.2

The Council Strategy describes the outcomes the Council aims to achieve for
its communities and gives an overview of the kinds of activity it will undertake
to achieve those outcomes.

1.3

Under normal circumstances the Council would be setting a Delivery Plan
which would map out in more detail specific activity to deliver against the
priorities and objectives in the Council Strategy over the medium term.
However, these are not normal circumstances. Since the new Council
Strategy was agreed the Covid-19 pandemic has taken hold - it has led to
huge societal and economic upheaval and is having a significant impact on
the Council’s functions and finances.

1.4

The overall long term strategic direction as set out in the Council Strategy
does not need to fundamentally alter at this point, however, the focus does
need to shift in the shorter term. In the very short term Council activity is
concentrated on supporting Allerdale’s communities and businesses through
the immediate crisis and response, making sure that people can get the
services and support that they need from the Council.

1.5

Whilst still dealing with the immediate crisis and response the Council is also
now beginning to enter a transition and recovery phase and will need to
develop dynamic approaches to support Allerdale’s communities and help the
local economy rebuild, whilst at the same time making sure that the Council
as an organisation is stable and Council services are running as effectively as
possible.

1.6

It is difficult to place any precise timescales on recovery - the phasing of the
recovery will be influenced by national policy decisions that the Government
makes as the situation evolves over the coming weeks and months – but it is
important to start mapping out recovery activities, as well as continuing to
deliver the immediate response phase effectively.

2.0

Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21

2.1

The draft Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 is attached as Appendix A. The draft
Interim Delivery Plan presents a combination of key projects, programmes
and activities planned prior to the pandemic and those generated as a result
of the pandemic.

2.2

This Interim Delivery Plan is written to cover the next year only. It is
envisaged that over that time the Council can build up a more detailed
understanding of the impacts the pandemic has had and will continue to have
on the Council as an organisation, the local economy and Allerdale’s
communities and a clearer sense of what the medium and longer term

Page 25

challenges look like. This will allow the creation of more solid medium term
plans for 2021 onwards, in part using the learning captured over the coming
months to help shape new approaches and better ways of working.
2.3

The draft Interim Delivery Plan follows the six priorities set out in the Council
Strategy:
 A financially secure council
 A cleaner, greener Allerdale
 Invest to grow
 Outstanding local services
 Thriving towns and villages
 Resilient communities

2.4

For each priority a series of key projects and activities are set out, in addition
to key performance measures focused on the effective delivery of Council
services.

2.5

In developing the Interim Delivery Plan consideration has been given to key
projects and programmes planned prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, provision
of council services, and new tasks driven by the pandemic. These have been
considered in terms of priority and feasibility in the current climate given the
resource demands placed on council services by the pandemic response and
recovery.

2.6

In light of the ongoing pandemic and rapidly moving national policy
environment it is still difficult to place precise timescales on some of the
activity within the Plan and timescales may need to be revised as things
become clearer. The Interim Delivery Plan may therefore need further
consideration and refinement throughout the coming year.

2.7

Underpinning the draft Interim Delivery Plan, service areas are producing
revised service plans to build in service specific recovery activity.

2.8

Progress on key activity will be reported quarterly to Executive. The Interim
Delivery Plan will also be published alongside the Council Strategy 2020-2030
on our website and reports on progress will be published on a quarterly basis.

3.0

Consultation/Customer Focus

3.1

The Council consulted with a range of partners and stakeholders on the
development of the Council Strategy.

3.2

The draft Interim Delivery Plan has been developed in conjunction with each
of the Council’s departments.

3.3

Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be considering the draft Interim
Delivery Plan at their committee meeting on 19 June 2020. Any comments
from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will fed verbally to Executive at
their meeting on 24 June 2020.

Page 26

4.0

Finance/Resource Implications

4.1

The budget setting process is an ongoing annual exercise that determines the
financial plans for current and future years and is informed by the Council’s
priorities as set out in the Council Strategy. Information on resources
allocated is contained in the Council Budget published annually. In light of the
ongoing pandemic the budget for 2020/21 will be revised in year and the
Delivery Plan may need revising as the financial implications of the pandemic
are reassessed throughout 2020/21. There are no additional resource
requirements requested arising directly from this report at this time.

5.0

Legal Implications and Risks

5.1

The Council Strategy forms part of the Council’s budget and policy framework
and responsibility for it is shared between the Executive and the Council.

5.2

If an appropriate Interim Delivery Plan is not in place there is a risk of a lack of
focus of Council activities and resources on the delivery of the outcomes for
the people of Allerdale identified in the Council Strategy 2020-2030, and no
framework for monitoring and managing delivery of the Council Strategy other
than at service level.

6.0

Recommendations

6.1

That members approve the draft Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 as presented
at Appendix A.

Nik Hardy
Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Council Strategy 2020-2030
Improving lives and improving futures through sustainable action

Page 29

Interim Delivery Plan
2020-21
[Insert graphic as per bottom of Council Strategy]

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Introduction

Page 30

Our Council Strategy shapes everything we do. Our
new Council Strategy 2020-30 sets the strategic
direction for our Council over the next 10 years. It
describes the outcomes we would like to achieve for
our communities and gives an overview of the kinds
of activity we will undertake to achieve those
outcomes.

making sure that our organisation is stable and our services are running as
effectively as possible. Whilst it is difficult to place any precise timescales
on recovery - the phasing of the recovery will be influenced by national
policy decisions that the Government makes as the health crisis evolves
over the coming weeks and months – we recognise how important it is that
we start to map out recovery activities, as well as continuing to deliver the
immediate response phase effectively.

Under normal circumstances we would be setting a 4
year Delivery Plan which would map out in more
detail how we will deliver against the priorities and
objectives in the Council Strategy. However, these
are not normal circumstances. Since our new
Council Strategy was agreed in December 2019 the
Covid-19 pandemic has taken hold - it has led to
huge societal and economic upheaval and is having
a significant impact on our organisation’s functions
and finances.

This Interim Delivery Plan is written to cover the next year only. Over that
time we will gain a more detailed understanding of the impacts the
pandemic has had and will continue to have on our organisation, our
economy and our communities and a clearer sense of what the medium and
longer term challenges look like. This will allow us to build some more solid
medium term plans using the learning we capture over the next months to
help shape new approaches and better ways of working.

Our overall long term strategic direction does not
need to fundamentally alter at this point, but we do
need to shift our focus in the shorter term. In the
very short term we are concentrating on supporting
our communities and businesses through the
immediate crisis, making sure that people can get the
services and support that they need from us.
Beyond the immediate crisis there will be a transition
and recovery phase and we will need to develop
dynamic approaches to support our communities and
help our economy rebuild, whilst at the same time
Allerdale Borough Council

This Interim Delivery Plan follows the six priorities set out in the Council
Strategy:
 A financially secure council
 A cleaner, greener Allerdale
 Invest to grow
 Outstanding local services
 Thriving towns and villages
 Resilient communities
For each priority we set out key projects that we need to keep on track over
the coming year, key service activity that will need focus over the next year
as we move through transition and recovery phases, and key performance
measures focused on the effective delivery of our services.

2

A financially secure council
Our objectives: Address the projected budget gap  Become self-sufficient by 2030  Become more commercial  Become more
efficient and productive
A key focus over the next months will be on fully understanding the impact that the Covid-19 pandemic has had and will continue to have on the
Council’s finances and building that understanding into our future financial projections and plans. This will include analysing the impacts on the
Council’s income streams with a focus on restoring income streams and/or developing new streams where appropriate. The Covid-19 crisis has
placed even more pressure on our finances and highlights even further the importance of achieving efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of
our functions and finding ways to improve our resilience through additional sources of income. Key activity for this year will also include
considering the changes that the Council can make to how it operates going forward, building on the success and learning from our experiences of
operating and using technology differently during the Covid-19 lockdown period. This work includes considering the sustainability of new ways of
working that have been developed during the response to Covid-19 and ensuring resources are aligned to maintain high levels of performance for
our customers.

Page 31

Key projects/activities

Timescales

Responsible Head of
Service

Analyse actual and projected financial impacts of Covid-19 crisis and recovery phase and build
into revised budget decisions for 2020/21 and medium term financial plan

by Mar 2021

Finance and Property

Develop and deliver service specific recovery plans for our income generating services (in
particular trade waste, estates, and car parking)

from May 2020

Finance and Property

Review the Council’s Target Operating Model and working practices as part of our Recovery
Strategy

from June 2020

Programmes and Projects

Continue a programme of service reviews across the council looking at cost, quality and delivery
mechanisms (building in learning from operating during the pandemic)

from June 2020

Programmes and Projects

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Key performance indicators

Frequency

Target 2020/21

% of council income that is from grants, CTtax, NNDR, fees and charges (including
commercial income streams)

Annual

Aiming to reduce reliance on grants over longer
term

Overall % of budget coming from balances

Annual

Aiming to reduce over longer term

Level of forecast budget gap

Annual

Aiming to reduce over longer term

% of invoiced debt collected within 30 days of invoicing

Monthly

A reducing trend through the year

% of debt outstanding for over 90 days

Monthly

A reducing trend through the year

NNDR collection rate

Monthly

97.7%

Council Tax collection rate

Monthly

97.2%

Occupancy rates of Council’s property portfolio

Monthly

90%

Page 32
Allerdale Borough Council

4

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

A cleaner, greener Allerdale
Our objectives: Make sure our neighbourhoods are clean and tidy  Reduce waste and increase recycling  Improve and protect our
open spaces and green infrastructure  Ensure environmental sustainability is at the heart of our policies  Use our assets to encourage
green technology
We have clear objectives around waste, recycling and neighbourhood cleanliness. For the rest of this year we aim to provide our waste and
recycling services with as little disruption as possible whilst addressing issues with increased waste to landfill and increased fly tipping seen during
the lockdown period. The current crisis has also highlighted even more the importance of our open spaces and green infrastructure for everyone to
enjoy for exercise and wellbeing – we will continue to make sure our neighbourhoods and open spaces are clean, tidy and safe, take enforcement
action where necessary, and work to improve and protect those spaces. It is also important not to lose sight of the environmental agenda amidst
the current crisis, so we aim to progress work on biodiversity and on producing a Climate Change Action Plan. There have been demonstrable
short term environmental benefits from the pandemic crisis and it will be important to feed learning from this period into the development of the
Climate Change Action Plan.

Page 33

Key projects/activities

Timescales

Tackle and reduce fly tipping through enforcement action and educational activity focusing
resources on known hotspots.

from March 2020

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Carry out recycling initiatives and educational campaigns to reduce waste

by March 2021

Finance and Property

Progress strategic green infrastructure and biodiversity projects and encourage
environmental volunteering: Water Environment Grant projects at Siddick Pond; Northside
allotment improvements; Workington Nature Partnership projects; development of 'Get Cumbria
Buzzing' sites (12 sites)

Northside by 2021
Other projects by
2022

Finance and Property

Develop and start delivery of a Climate Change Action Plan

Developed by Sept
2020

Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Allerdale Borough Council

Responsible Head of
Service

5

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Key performance indicators

Frequency

Target 2020/21

Street cleanliness measure (litter, detritus and weeds)

Monthly

Number of fly tipping incidents

Monthly

Number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued (fly tipping)

Quarterly

Aim to increase through the year

% of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting

Quarterly

36%

Residual waste per household (kgs)

Quarterly

479kg

Number of valid missed waste and recycling collections

Monthly

Fewer than 80 per 100,000 per month

Aim to ensure sites do not fall below Grade
B standard
Aim to reduce through the year after
increase seen in March/April 2020

Page 34
Allerdale Borough Council

6

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Invest to grow
Our objectives: Use our asset portfolio to create new or different opportunities  Work with partners on key economic sites and
opportunities  Utilise the Allerdale Investment Partnership, the Local Enterprise Partnership and Britain’s Energy Coast to stimulate growth
 Develop a housing company to provide the right homes in the right places at the right price
Clearly we are starting from a very different point in terms of our local economy than we were when our Council Strategy was created and agreed.
The Covid-19 crisis has hit our local, national (and global) economies very hard and the repercussions are likely to be felt for years to come. Our
role will be to provide opportunities, assistance, support and leadership to help our area fulfil its potential. It is vital that in the short term we do all
we can to support local businesses and employers and stabilise the local economy, but we also need to look forwards to help create the conditions
to stimulate investment and development in Allerdale. Working with partners we need to create recovery plans that aim to develop a more inclusive,
resilient and green economy in the longer term, and help Cumbrian businesses to take advantage of opportunities to diversify and enter new
market segments. A key activity to support this work will be an ongoing assessment of intelligence and information to help us better understand the
impacts on the borough, for example how quickly and to what extent supply and demand returns, as we move through exit phases from lockdown.

Page 35

Key projects/activities
Develop plans for economic recovery including a new Economic Growth Strategy for Allerdale to
guide economic development activity to ambitiously rethink and rebuild the local economy over the longer
term

Timescales

Responsible Head
of Service

by Oct 2020

Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Deliver the national programmes of support grants to small businesses, including developing and
delivering any discretionary schemes to support local businesses

from April 2020

Customer Operations

Develop the Housing Company: existing properties let and converted (7 properties); develop Phase 2
Programme for future years

by 2021

Programme Director
(Maryport)

Allerdale Borough Council

7

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Key projects/activities

Timescales

Responsible Head
of Service

Progress investment and regeneration schemes including:
 Review viability options for delivery of new business units at Reedlands Road

by Sept 2020

 Development of Lillyhall North to provide business accommodation (also a commercial opportunity
for the Council)

by March 2021

 Progress discussions around Lower Derwent Valley Regeneration Scheme (including a community
sports village)

from June 2020

 Development of other investment and regeneration opportunities with development partners and the
Allerdale Investment Partnership as a priority.

from June 2020

Programme Director
(Workington)

Page 36

Key performance indicators

Frequency

Target 2020/21

% of major planning applications determined within statutory period

Quarterly

90%

% of grant monies paid out in grants to small businesses

Monthly

Aiming to pay out 100% of grants by Oct
2020

Allerdale Borough Council

8

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Outstanding local services
Our objectives: Make it easy for customers to contact us  Ensure we get it right first time  Be bold in our use of technology  Look
at different and better ways to deliver services
We have successfully managed to keep our essential services running well throughout the Covid-19 crisis period, as well as taking on additional
tasks asked of us by national government to provide support to our businesses and communities. Part of our success has been rooted in our
previous work to enable digital delivery of services and a mobile workforce which will continue to be important going forward and we will be building
learning from the current period into future working practices. We have seen changing demand for some of our services during the initial crisis
phase (both increases and decreases) and we will need to plan for the year in terms of projected ongoing changes in demand. A few of our
services have been forced to cease under Covid-19 legislation and there will be work to do over the next year to map out when and how they can
resume. Departments will be working to develop service-specific recovery plans setting out how phased recovery will work taking into account
ongoing demand, risks and changes to working practices. Our aim will be to make sure our services are easy to access, helpful and efficient.

Page 37

Key projects/activities

Timescales

Responsible Head
of Service

Deliver technology projects to provide improved digital platforms and self-service options including:
- continued implementation of the Arcus land and property system
- purchase and implementation of a new finance, payroll and HR system

by March 2021

Governance and
Regulatory Services &
Finance and Property

Review the Council’s Target Operating Model and working practices as part of our Recovery Strategy

from May 2020

Programmes and
Projects

Continue a programme of service reviews across the council looking at cost, quality and delivery
mechanisms (building in learning from operating during the pandemic)

from May 2020

Programmes and
Projects

Ensure Allerdale Waste Services is delivering against performance targets

from April 2020

Finance and Property

Allerdale Borough Council

9

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Page 38

Key performance indicators

Frequency

Target 2020/21

% of abandoned calls

Monthly

7%

Customer satisfaction (ring back)

Monthly

90%

Number of complaints

Monthly

A reducing trend over the year

% change in website unique page views

Monthly

% change in new website users

Monthly

Facebook reach rate

Monthly

Facebook engagement rate

Monthly

Average engagement rate of more than
20% over the previous 3 month period

Digital transactions as a % of total transactions

Monthly

New indicator - baseline year

Overall time ICT systems available for use

Monthly

99.9%

Allerdale Borough Council

5% increase over previous year on six
month rolling average
30% increase over previous year on six
month rolling average
10% rise in reach over a six month
rolling period over the previous six
month period

10

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Thriving towns and villages
Our objectives: Support businesses  Create deliverable town plans that enable our towns to adapt to the changing nature of the high
street  Ensure there are suitable, affordable, decent homes for all  Give people a reason to visit our towns (festivals, events, cultural and
sporting activities, markets)  Increase the number of people living in our town centres  Build communities, not just homes
This is an important area for us, made even more significant in the current circumstances. A key focus over the next months will be on fully
understanding the impact that the Covid-19 pandemic has had and will continue to have on our towns, villages and businesses and to build that
understanding into our future plans. This will include analysing the impacts on our town centres, the wider business community and the housing
market as we move through the different recovery phases the government have now set out. Our high streets were already being impacted by
changes in the way we all shop, and there are now a new set of challenges that our businesses will need to adapt to with ongoing restrictions,
regulations and changes.

Page 39

As a council we have a number of service areas that can support businesses with advice and key services such as planning, building control,
licensing and environmental health and we will make sure we are offering helpful and proactive advice and guidance for businesses. We can also
make sure we help to maintain demand in the local economy by using local suppliers where we can, and paying local suppliers promptly. Our two
big regeneration programmes in Maryport and Workington continue to be vitally important for those towns, and we will be reviewing and where
necessary reprogramming our activities to reflect the needs of each town.

Key projects/activities

Timescales

Maryport Regeneration Programme: work to access funding from the Future High Street Fund and
Heritage Action Zone and development of the town centre and waterfront plans, building in new
intelligence about the impacts of the pandemic.

Submit FHS
business case by
end July 2020

Workington Town Deal:
- Develop investment plan building in intelligence about the impacts of the pandemic
- Develop Delivery Plan once funding secured for 2021 onwards

by August 2020
from 2021

Allerdale Borough Council

Responsible Head of
Service
Programme Director
(Maryport)

Programme Director
(Workington)

11

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Key projects/activities

Timescales

Responsible Head of
Service

from April 2020

Programme Director
(Workington) &
Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Undertake work with partners to support the recovery of the visitor economy including assessing
the impact, considering appropriate interventions and delivering actions as part of a recovery plan for
the visitor sector, markets and events.

from June 2020

Programme Director
(Workington) &
Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Complete the Allonby to Silloth coastal cyclepath extension to support the visitor economy and
health and wellbeing agenda

Open by 2021

Programme Director
(Workington)

Undertake business engagement and support activity to enable the Council to better understand
businesses issues, challenges and ideas and feed those through to local, regional and national forums.

Deliver targeted public realm schemes in our towns including:

Page 40

 Work with the county council to consider temporary physical changes to road and pavement
layouts to support our town centre businesses with ongoing social distancing measures

from June 2020

 Progress the Central Way underpass improvement scheme

Phase 1 by
March 2021

Programme Director
(Workington) &
Finance and Property

Ensure our regulatory services work to assist businesses as much as possible, such as efficient
planning, building control, licensing and environmental health processes, implementing improvements to from March 2020
the provision of services to help businesses

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Undertake work to understand and address impacts of the pandemic on the housing market over
short, medium and longer term

from June 2020

Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Deliver disabled facilities grants and review the Housing Grants and Assistance Policy in light of the
pandemic.

from April 2020

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Allerdale Borough Council

12

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Page 41

Key performance indicators

Frequency Target 2020/21

% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days

Monthly

98%

% of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and services with local (Cumbrian) suppliers

Quarterly

50%

Numbers of affordable homes delivered

Quarterly

Not targeted

Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building Control)

Monthly

85%

% of Local Land Charges Searches carried out within 10 working days

Monthly

100%

% of minor and other planning applications determined within statutory period

Monthly

90%

No. of housing units granted planning permission

Quarterly

339

Number of DFGs approved

Monthly

Increase through the year

Allerdale Borough Council

13

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Resilient communities
Promote healthy, active lifestyles  Address community safety issues  Engage with our communities, and our
town and parish councils  Prevent and reduce homelessness  Address inequalities

Our objectives:

The pandemic crisis has had a profound effect on our communities and we will continue to see the effects of the crisis for some time to come. Over
the next months we will need to consider how we can help to support our residents and communities across the district as we move out of the
current restrictions, in particular how we continue to best support residents at greater risk as we move from the response phase into recovery.
Those at greater risk include residents with specific medical conditions as well as those with wider risk factors including social isolation, domestic
abuse, those with low income or in receipt of benefits, those in insecure, low-paid work, and the ageing population.

Page 42

Our homelessness service is vitally important and there will be much work to do over the next months to address ongoing demand as the economy
continues to be hard hit. Making sure there are a range of leisure opportunities for our communities to support health and wellbeing is also a key
activity for us and there will be work to do over the coming months to assess when and how our leisure centres can reopen. The Council
contributes to existing health and wellbeing, community safety and other networks that will continue to co-ordinate and deliver activity to support
our communities such as the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum, the multi-agency Local Focus Hub, and the Allerdale Work and Skills
Partnership. The Council will build on and develop existing and new relationships to offer targeted, effective and long term support and assistance,
through recovery and beyond. Work to support communities will vary locally across communities within Allerdale using place-based intelligence to
identify need.

Timescales

Responsible Head
of Service

Work with GLL to plan for reopening and future operation of leisure centres including restarting
the Healthwise Scheme to deliver exercise on referral

from June 2020

Finance and Property

Deliver a £140k grants pot to support sporting clubs and associations to improve accessibility,
participation and to support recovery from impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic

by March 2021

Finance and Property

Further develop the Allerdale Local Focus Hub to drive a thriving families approach with existing
and new partners including responding to the ongoing impact of lockdown and continued social
distancing measures.

from April 2020

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Provide advice and guidance, along with undertaking investigation and enforcement activity,
to support Covid-19 restrictions on businesses and help them provide safe environments.

from April 2020

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Key projects/activities

Allerdale Borough Council

14

Interim Delivery Plan 2020-21

Timescales

Key projects/activities

Responsible Head
of Service

Page 43

Undertake test and trace activity in partnership with Cumbria County Council.

from June 2020

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Develop a Resilient Communities Strategy setting out how we can support communities across
the district as we move out of the current restrictions and into recovery.

by Aug 2020

Strategy, Policy and
Performance

Deliver the Hardship Fund to support those on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and others
experiencing financial hardship as a result of the pandemic.

from June 2020

Customer Operations

Implement the Homeless Strategy action plan including a focus on prevention activity and
ongoing work to help the additional people housed during the pandemic crisis to remain in
accommodation.

from June 2020

Customer Operations

Progress and launch the Cold to Cosy Homes Scheme – working towards launch in autumn
2020.

by Oct 2020

Governance and
Regulatory Services

Key performance indicators

Frequency

Target 2020/21

Leisure centre usage

Monthly

Aiming to increase gradually
once centres can reopen

% of homeless decisions made within guideline 56 days

Quarterly

100%

% of successful homeless preventions and relief outcomes

Quarterly

50%

Time taken to process Housing Benefit new claims (no. of days)

Monthly

15 days

Time taken to process Council Tax new claims (no. of days)

Monthly

20 days

Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax change of circumstances (no. of days)

Monthly

4 days

Allerdale Borough Council

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44

